directed to the Secretary to the Commission and must include a full statement of the reasons why the Commission should grant such treatment. See 19 CFR 201.6. Documents for which confidential treatment by the Commission is properly sought will be treated accordingly. All information, including confidential business information and documents for which confidential treatment is properly sought, submitted to the Commission for purposes of this Investigation may be disclosed to and used: (i) By the Commission, its employees and Offices, and contract personnel (a) for developing or maintaining the records of this or a related proceeding, or (b) in internal investigations, audits, reviews, and evaluations relating to the programs, personnel, and operations of the Commission including under 5 U.S.C. Appendix 3; or (ii) by U.S. government employees and contract personnel, <sup>2</sup> solely for cybersecurity purposes. All nonconfidential written submissions will be available for public inspection at the Office of the Secretary and on EDIS.<sup>3</sup>

This action is taken under the authority of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and of §§ 201.10 and 210.8(c) of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR 201.10, 210.8(c)).

By order of the Commission. Issued: July 17, 2020.

# Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission. [FR Doc. 2020–15890 Filed 7–21–20; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

# INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation Nos. 701–TA–647 and 731– TA–1517–1520 (Preliminary)]

# Passenger Vehicle and Light Truck Tires From Korea, Taiwan, Thailand, and Vietnam

#### DETERMINATIONS

On the basis of the record <sup>1</sup> developed in the subject investigations, the United States International Trade Commission ("Commission") determines, pursuant to the Tariff Act of 1930 ("the Act"), that there is a reasonable indication that an industry in the United States is materially injured by reason of imports of passenger vehicle and light truck tires from Korea, Taiwan, Thailand, and Vietnam, provided for in subheadings 4011.10.10, 4011.10.50, 4011.20.10, and 4011.20.50 of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States, that are alleged to be sold in the United States at less than fair value ("LTFV") and to be subsidized by the government of Vietnam.<sup>2</sup>

#### **Commencement of Final Phase Investigations**

Pursuant to § 207.18 of the Commission's rules, the Commission also gives notice of the commencement of the final phase of its investigations. The Commission will issue a final phase notice of scheduling, which will be published in the Federal Register as provided in § 207.21 of the Commission's rules, upon notice from the U.S. Department of Commerce ("Commerce") of affirmative preliminary determinations in the investigations under sections 703(b) or 733(b) of the Act, or, if the preliminary determinations are negative, upon notice of affirmative final determinations in those investigations under sections 705(a) or 735(a) of the Act. Parties that filed entries of appearance in the preliminary phase of the investigations need not enter a separate appearance for the final phase of the investigations. Industrial users, and, if the merchandise under investigation is sold at the retail level, representative consumer organizations have the right to appear as parties in Commission antidumping and countervailing duty investigations. The Secretary will prepare a public service list containing the names and addresses of all persons, or their representatives, who are parties to the investigations.

## Background

On May 13, 2020, the United Steel, Paper and Forestry, Rubber, Manufacturing, Energy, Allied Industrial and Service Workers International Union, AFL-CIO, CLC ("USW"), Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, filed petitions with the Commission and Commerce, alleging that an industry in the United States is materially injured or threatened with material injury by reason of subsidized imports of passenger vehicle and light truck tires from Vietnam and LTFV imports of passenger vehicle and light truck tires from Korea, Taiwan, Thailand, and Vietnam. Accordingly, effective May 13, 2020, the Commission instituted countervailing duty investigation No. 701-TA-647 and antidumping duty

investigation Nos. 731–TA–1517–1520 (Preliminary).

Notice of the institution of the Commission's investigations and of a public conference to be held in connection therewith was given by posting copies of the notice in the Office of the Secretary, U.S. International Trade Commission, Washington, DC, and by publishing the notice in the Federal Register of May 19, 2020 (85 FR 29972). In light of the restrictions on access to the Commission building due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Commission conducted its conference through written questions, submissions of opening remarks and written testimony, written responses to questions, and postconference briefs. All persons who requested the opportunity were permitted to participate.

The Commission made these determinations pursuant to sections 703(a) and 733(a) of the Act (19 U.S.C. 1671b(a) and 1673b(a)). It completed and filed its determinations in these investigations on July 24, 2020. The views of the Commission are contained in USITC Publication 5093 (July 2020), entitled Passenger Vehicle and Light Truck Tires from Korea, Taiwan, Thailand, and Vietnam: Investigation Nos. 701–TA–647 and 731–TA–1517– 1520 (Preliminary).

By order of the Commission. Issued: July 17, 2020.

#### Lisa Barton,

Secretary to the Commission. [FR Doc. 2020–15889 Filed 7–21–20; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

# INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 337-TA-1206]

### Certain Percussive Massage Devices; Institution of Investigation

**AGENCY:** U.S. International Trade Commission.

# **ACTION:** Notice.

**SUMMARY:** Notice is hereby given that a complaint was filed with the U.S. International Trade Commission on June 17, 2020 under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, on behalf of Hyper Ice, Inc. of Irvine, California. A supplement was filed on June 27, 2020. The complaint alleges violations of section 337 based upon the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain percussive massage devices by reason of infringement of certain claims

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> All contract personnel will sign appropriate nondisclosure agreements.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Electronic Document Information System (EDIS): *https://edis.usitc.gov.* 

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The record is defined in § 207.2(f) of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR 207.2(f)).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> 85 FR 38850 and 85 FR 38854 (June 29, 2020).

of U.S. Patent No. 10,561,574 ("the '574 patent"); U.S. Design Patent No. D855,822 ("the 'D822 patent"); and U.S. Design Patent No. D886,317 ("the 'D317 patent"). The complaint further alleges that an industry in the United States exists as required by the applicable Federal Statute. The complainant requests that the Commission institute an investigation and, after the investigation, issue a general exclusion order, or in the alternative a limited exclusion order, and cease and desist orders.

**ADDRESSES:** The complaint, except for any confidential information contained therein, may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help accessing EDIS, please email EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. Hearing impaired individuals are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal on (202) 205-1810. Persons with mobility impairments who will need special assistance in gaining access to the Commission should contact the Office of the Secretary at (202) 205-2000. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at https://www.usitc.gov.

#### FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Pathenia M. Proctor, The Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, telephone (202) 205–2560.

# SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Authority: The authority for institution of this investigation is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337, and in section 210.10 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10 (2020).

Scope of Investigation: Having considered the complaint, the U.S. International Trade Commission, on July 16, 2020, ordered that—

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, an investigation be instituted to determine whether there is a violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of section 337 in the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, or the sale within the United States after importation of certain products identified in paragraph (2) by reason of infringement of one or more of claims 1-9, 14, and 15 of the '574 patent; the claim of the 'D822 patent; and the claim of the 'D317 patent, and whether an industry in the United States exists as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337;

(2) Pursuant to section 210.10(b)(1) of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10(b)(1), the plain language description of the accused products or category of accused products, which defines the scope of the investigation, is "therapeutic handheld percussive massage devices for applying percussive massage to a person's body";

(3) For the purpose of the investigation so instituted, the following are hereby named as parties upon which this notice of investigation shall be served:

(a) The complainant is:

Hyper Ice, Inc., 525 Technology Drive, Suite 100, Irvine, CA 92618

(b) The respondents are the following entities alleged to be in violation of section 337, and are the parties upon which the complaint is to be served:

- Addaday LLC, 2500 Broadway, Building F, 125, Santa Monica, CA 90404
- Performance Health Systems, LLC, 401 Huehl Rd., Suite 2A, Northbrook, IL 60062
- WODFitters, 6281 Corder Ln., Lorton, VA 22079
- Massimo Motor Sports, LLC, 3101 W Miller Rd., Garland, TX 75041
- Kinghood International Logistics Inc., 16851 Knott Ave., La Mirada, CA 90638
- Manybo Ecommerce Ltd., Unit 622, Kwai Shun Ind. Centre, 51–63, Container Port Road, Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong
- Shenzhen Let Us Win-Win Technology Co., Ltd., 4F, No.229, Busha Road, Buji, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, China 518000
- Shenzhen Infein Technology Co., Ltd., 12–1, 1st Factory Building, Tian'an Digital Innovation Park, No. 441, Huangge Road, Longcheng Street, Longgang District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, China, 51800
- Hong Kong Yongxu Capital Management Co., Ltd., Flat/Rm 1804, Beverly House, 93–107 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, China 999077
- Laiwushiyu Xinuan Trading Company, Chendaxia Village, Laiwu, Shandong District, China 271100
- Shenzhen QingYueTang E-commerce Co., Ltd., Rm.1001, 10th Fl., Zhongken Building, No.2002 Bixin Rd., Longgang District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, China 518000
- Shenzhen Shiluo Trading Co., Ltd., 37 East 305, Minli Old Village, Minzhi Street, Longhua New District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, China 518000
- Kula eCommerce Co., Ltd., NO. 50, Danshui Baiyun Yi Road, Huiyang District, Huizhou City, Guangdong, China 516211

- Fu Si, 621 Gongye Road, Longhua District, Shenzhen, Guangdong, China 518000
- Shenzhen Qifeng Technology Co., Ltd., 1019, Weidonglong Technology Building, Meilong Boulevard, Longhua Sub-District, Longhua Ne W District Shenzhen, Guangdong, 518015 China
- Rechar, Inc., 56157 Oak Ave., Strasburg, CO 80136
- Ning Chen, Group 4 Yanyan Village, Luoqiao Town, 71 Hao, Funing, Yancheng, Jiangsu China 224400
- Opove, 207 N Aspan Ave, Suite 2, Azusa, CA 91702
- Shenzhen Shufang E-Commerce Co., Ltd., 602–2 Building 4, Zhangkeng Youpin, Cultural Creative Park Longhua District, Shenzhen China 518000

(c) The Office of Unfair Import Investigations, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Suite 401, Washington, DC 20436; and

(4) For the investigation so instituted, the Chief Administrative Law Judge, U.S. International Trade Commission, shall designate the presiding Administrative Law Judge.

Responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation must be submitted by the named respondents in accordance with section 210.13 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to 19 CFR 201.16(e) and 210.13(a), as amended in 85 FR 15798 (March 19, 2020), such responses will be considered by the Commission if received not later than 20 days after the date of service by the complainant of the complaint and the notice of investigation. Extensions of time for submitting responses to the complaint and the notice of investigation will not be granted unless good cause therefor is shown.

Failure of a respondent to file a timely response to each allegation in the complaint and in this notice may be deemed to constitute a waiver of the right to appear and contest the allegations of the complaint and this notice, and to authorize the administrative law judge and the Commission, without further notice to the respondent, to find the facts to be as alleged in the complaint and this notice and to enter an initial determination and a final determination containing such findings, and may result in the issuance of an exclusion order or a cease and desist order or both directed against the respondent.

By order of the Commission.

Issued: July 16, 2020. Lisa Barton, Secretary to the Commission. [FR Doc. 2020–15814 Filed 7–21–20; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 7020–02–P

# DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

# Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives

[OMB Number 1140-0017]

Agency Information Collection Activities; Proposed eCollection eComments Requested; Annual Firearms Manufacturing and Exportation Report Under 18 U.S.C. Chapter 44, Firearms—ATF Form 5300.11

**AGENCY:** Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives, Department of Justice.

# ACTION: 30-Day notice.

**SUMMARY:** The Department of Justice (DOJ), Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF), will submit the following information collection request to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for review and approval in accordance with the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995.

**DATES:** Comments are encouraged and will be accepted for an additional 30 days until August 21, 2020.

**ADDRESSES:** Written comments and recommendations for the proposed information collection should be sent within 30 days of publication of this notice to *www.reginfo.gov/public/do/ PRAMain.* Find this particular information collection by selecting "Currently under 30-day Review—Open for Public Comments" or by using the search function.

**SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:** Written comments and suggestions from the public and affected agencies concerning the proposed collection of information are encouraged. Your comments should address one or more of the following four points:

-Evaluate whether the proposed collection of information is necessary for the proper performance of the functions of the agency, including whether the information will have practical utility;

Evaluate the accuracy of the agency's estimate of the burden of the proposed collection of information, including the validity of the methodology and assumptions used;
Evaluate whether and if so how the

quality, utility, and clarity of the

information to be collected can be enhanced; and

—Minimize the burden of the collection of information on those who are to respond, including through the use of appropriate automated, electronic, mechanical, or other technological collection techniques or other forms of information technology, *e.g.*, permitting electronic submission of responses.

#### **Overview of This Information Collection**

(1) *Type of Information Collection:* Extension without change of a currently approved collection.

(2) *The Title of the Form/Collection:* Annual Firearms Manufacturing and Exportation Report Under 18 U.S.C. Chapter 44, Firearms.

(3) The agency form number, if any, and the applicable component of the Department sponsoring the collection:

Form number: ATF Form 5300.11.

*Component:* Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives, U.S. Department of Justice.

(4) Affected public who will be asked or required to respond, as well as a brief abstract:

*Primary:* Business or other for-profit. *Other:* None.

*Abstract:* The information collected on the Annual Firearms Manufacturing and Exportation Report Under 18 U.S.C. Chapter 44, Firearms—ATF Form 5300.11, is used to compile statistics about the manufacture and exportation of firearms. This collection of information is mandatory under 18 U.S.C. 923(g)(5)(A). The completed ATF Form 5300.11 must be submitted annually by every Type 07 and Type 10 Federal Firearms Licensees (FFLs), even if no firearms were exported or distributed into commerce.

(5) An estimate of the total number of respondents and the amount of time estimated for an average respondent to respond: An estimated 13,600 respondents will utilize the form annually, and it will take each respondent approximately 20 minutes to complete their responses.

(6) An estimate of the total public burden (in hours) associated with the collection: The estimated annual public burden associated with this collection is 4,533 hours, which is equal to 13,600 (# of respondents) \* 1 (total responses per respondents) \* .333 (24 minutes).

(7) An Explanation of the Change in Estimates: Due to more licensed manufacturers, the total respondents to this IC has increased by 1,600, since the last renewal in 2017. An increase in the total respondents has also contributed in a slight increase in the total burden hours by 533, since 2017.

If additional information is required contact: Melody Braswell, Department Clearance Officer, United States Department of Justice, Justice Management Division, Policy and Planning Staff, Two Constitution Square, 145 N Street NE, 3E.405A, Washington, DC 20530.

Dated: July 16, 2020.

## Melody Braswell,

Department Clearance Officer for PRA, U.S. Department of Justice.

[FR Doc. 2020–15806 Filed 7–21–20; 8:45 am] BILLING CODE 4410–14–P

BILLING CODE 4410-14-P

## DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

# Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives

[OMB Number 1140-0028]

#### Agency Information Collection Activities; Proposed eCollection eComments Requested; Inventories: Licensed Explosives Importers, Manufacturers, Dealers, and Permittees

**AGENCY:** Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives, Department of Justice.

ACTION: 30-day notice.

**SUMMARY:** The Department of Justice (DOJ), Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF), will submit the following information collection request to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for review and approval in accordance with the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995.

**DATES:** Comments are encouraged and will be accepted for an additional 30 days until August 21, 2020.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Written comments and recommendations for the proposed information collection should be sent within 30 days of publication of this notice to www.reginfo.gov/public/do/ PRAMain. Find this particular information collection by selecting "Currently under 30-day Review—Open for Public Comments" or by using the search function.

**SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:** Written comments and suggestions from the public and affected agencies concerning the proposed collection of information are encouraged. Your comments should address one or more of the following four points:

-Evaluate whether the proposed collection of information is necessary for the proper performance of the